
United Nations Nations Unies UNRESTRI CTED 

E/C:Oltil' .6/C . I/SR . 13/ 
Rev .1 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

CON SElL 
ECONOMIQUE 
ET SOCIAL 

15 November 1949 

SOCIAL COUNCIL 

Content s : 

UiHTEli l~ATIONS CONFERErJCE ON ROAD AND MCYI'OR TRANSPORT 

CuMNITTE'E I ON u :GAL AND GENERAL MATTERS AND DOCu'lviEf'!TS 

SUl4l'-\ARY HEC0FD OF TEE 'IHIRTEENTli MEETIFG 

~.eld at the Peleis de a Nati on s , Geneva, 
on 'l'uesc,ay, 6 Se:ptamber 1949 , at 10 . a.m . 

CEAI&\1.A.N : Mr. MJYJ\OUI ( Le ban or.) 

SECPJi:TARY : ~Ir. HOSTIE 

CONSIDERATION OF . II'R!LF.T PROVISIONS FOR INSERTION IN 
. TEE CONV'ENTION 0!-! ROAD TRAFFIC 

/CvVSILERATION 



E/CONF .8 /C . I/SR .l3/Rev . l 
P::::oc 2 

CONSI !:f.:P.11 'l'ICN OF I:RA.:<-or' PRCVISIOt-!5 FOR INSERTION n~ TEE C0NVENTIOl\~ 
ON RCAI: TRP..~.'i'FIC (Iocum.entz W/Fr/22/49 , E/COiiiF .8/21 and E/CONF .8/41) 

:~rt:'clp G 

Tte Co~ttee r e oumed ~~ecu~sion of. par agr aph 2 of the draf t 

Ar-i..icl e G EUOL;i t ted by t he Working Grou,:p (Document W/F.T/22/49) . 

l-':r . AZKOUL (Lebanon ) appealed t o t he representative of t he 

Un i ted h.ingdom to a ccept the text reconmended 'by t he \olorking Group , 

point in6 out t hat i t wa s similar to the t ext which i t had nP.en Dgreed 

t o insert in t he draf t Convention on Freedom of Information , and which 

he d been dra f t ed i n ver y modest terms pre cisely i n or der t ha t it might 

meet wi th t he appr oval of the r epr esentative of the Uni t ed hingQam. 

~x . BEST (Unite~ K5nJdom) seid that he coul~ not a~ree t c 

t he a dopt ion of tte text f or the r easons te l:ed given at the :pr ev ious 

meet i ng of t he Comm:. ttee . Al t hough the Unit ed Ki n.3dom Governmer1t was 

prepa r ed t c. c ommi t i t self t o taking s t eps t owar 6.P the appli cation of 

the draft Conventi on on Freecoo of Informati on and convent i ons on 

matter s such a s hUJJ18 n r ights t o the t erri tories for the international 

rel~tiona of whic~. it wa s responsible, it could not "undertake t o take 

as ~con es poss ibl e the nece ssary s teps i n order t o exten& the 

eppl~.c~ tion" ~lf the proposed Convention on P.oad Traf f ic t o such 
•---.! +...., ...,.~ o ro ... ...,_- - ... ----.... ' 
not f er f r om 'be1n; sover e isn s t ate s . Although i t might ha ve been 

able t o enter :into r:mr.h a commitment even f i fteen year s az o, i t c ould 

not do so a t t he pr esent moment because of the const1 tutional :pr ()6r ess 

made s-n~e t hen . He urged t he deletion of paragraph 2 . 

Mr . GCRAEW.IAN (Nether lands) sa i d t hat it was imma t erial t o 

his Government whet l1er the paragr aph was r etained or not . 

Mr . BANERJI (India) said that he could a gree ei ther t o t he 

delet1 on or t he r e tent i on of t he par agr aph . While ee,r eei ne, that 

government s might not 'be able t o enter int o t he same commd t ments i n 

r es ard t o a pr oposed Convention on Road Traff ic as in r egar d t o f r eedom 

of informat i on ene. human rights, he did however hope t ha t the r epr esentative 

of t he Un i t ed Kingoom Government would be able t o ae;ree t o the 

adoption of the par agr aph , el~htly emended t o meet his views , since 

/its adoption 



E/CONF.8/C.I/SR.l3/Rev. l 
Page 3 

its ad.option would help t o bring about . greater uniformity on t ile roacls 

of the i:lurld. 

Hr . AZKOUL (Lebanon) said that he could. not un der s t anci why 

t he r epresentative of t he Unit ed Kingdom was oppose o. to the adoption 

cf t he pa r a0r aph , s ince he ( t he representative of Lebe.ncn) considered 

that t he wor ds " subject, wher e nece ssary for cons t i t ut ional r ea sons 

to t he consent of the Goyernmente of such territories" met a ll the 

const i tutional r equirements mentionec, by t .r.e r epr e sentetive of t he 

Unit ed Ki ngd.OI!l . He might be abl e to aar ee t o t he deletion of t :!e 

par agraph , but he !toped tha t it woul& ne-t be C'celeted., be 0F!Use, if it 

were, certain s t ates which otherwise would have acced.ed t o t he 

Convention might not do so . He did not doubt t hat if r epr esent a tives 

of Lat i n American countries and of the Union of Sovi e t so~ ielist 

Re publ.'.cs h&d been present at t he Conference : they would have str cngly 

urg ed the retenti on of the par agraph, wllich represented a c ompr oo.ise 

between t he i r views and those of countries r esponsible for the 

internati onal rel a tions of overseas t erri tories . 

Af ter same discussion, Mr . BEST (United Kingdom) said t hat 

t.e did not want to &well any longer on t his point i n the Cc;m:ni ttee, 

an d tha t ; in view of t he a r guments adduced by the representati ve of 

t he Lcnanon, hi s de l ega t ion might propose t he deleti on cf t t e paragraph 

when it was consider e d. at e pl enar y meeti ng . 

The Committee ado~ted pa r agraph 2 of draft Article G subm1tted 

by the Worki ng Gr oup (tocument wjp.T/22/49 ) , eubjec·t t o t he Pt a teraents 

made thereon by the r epresenta tive of the Unit ed KinJdom. 

~~. BEST (United Kingdom) proposed t he delet ion of paragr aph 

3 of draft ftxticle G submitted by t he Wor king Group, E&ying t hat i t was 

ent i r ely r edundant. Any state vhict wa s responsibl e f or t he i nternati ona l 

rela t ions of overseas terri tor ies and which properly carried out i ts 

r esponsibilities, would transmi t t he Convention t0 the ou thor i ties 

concerne d i n t hose terri tories. 

Mr . HUBERT (Fr ance) expressing agreement v ith the 

representat i ve of the Un i ted Kingdom, said that, if par a&r aph 2 of 

draft Art i cle G were adopted, par t i e s t o the Convent ion would eend 

/cories of the 



E/C0~~ . 8/C . I/SR . l3/Rev .l 
Page 4 · 

copies c·f t he Convention to the author itie s concerned in t he . . 
terri t 0rias for the international r elations of vhich they ~ere 

r espor.3ible, as one of t~1e first of the steps to extend the application 

of the Comention t o such territor ies 
1 

to vbich they vere committed 

by t l'.a t par agr aph . 

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon} said t hat paragraph 2 applied only to 

contra~tina et a t esJ wher eas in paragrap~ 3 it was laid dovn that the 

Rec.;r ets ry-Gener al ox' t he United. Nations should conmrunicate the 

Conventi 0n , not only t o each cm1tracting state respons ible for the 

iute~national r elations of over seas territorie~, bu t e l eo t o each of 

the etateo referre~ to in nraft Article ~ , r~ra6raph 1 for tranRmiesicn 

by it t o the author ities conce.rned .in tbe terr i t or ies for the 

intel~ational r elctions o~ vbich i t vas r eeponsible. Rcwever in 

viev of vhet the r epr esentative of I .cancr! had sajd and of the fact that 

t te cf.r·ption o= par agraph 3 vonl:d. not melee i t obligator y f or Ptates to 

r ef er the Convention to t he aut horities concerned. in territorles f or 

the int ernational relatione of vhicl: they were respons i ble, he could 

agr ee to the del e tion of paragraph 3. 

The Co~ittae agr ee0 t o delete paragra~1 3 of draft Article G 

suomi tteC't by ,.t:.e 'vlcr kin& Group (Document W/RT /22/49) . 

'!'hP ('nM"nit.t.AA 13clc:'!Jted cT aft Article G submit ted by __ t_!l_e v: crk_~~ 

GrouP. (Document W~T/22~9) 1 as amended, subjec t to the s t a t ements 

mece t ter eon bv t he repr c sent ati ves of th_e Unit e l KingC.om and 

Czechos1ovak:ia . . ._..._.. __ 
Ar t ic l e B 

Mr. Bf.NERJI (India) said that wi t l: the help of the 

r epr enentetiven of Fr ance, the United Kinsdcm and the United States 

of P.mer ica , t c wh om he was extremel y gratef ul, he had prepar ed a text 

(Document E/CO~T .B/41) which t hey proposed be adopted 1neteaQ of 
. . 

draft Prtic l ee B, C ann D eubmitte c by the Secretaria t (Dccument 

F / CON:." .8/21). The te.xt of Locument E/CONF .8/41 vas in accordance 

v i th tl'.e viev r; he had expressed a t the Ni~th and Tenth Meetings of t he 

Commi t tee on Articles B, C nnd L .submitted ·bY the Secr eta riat . 

/In view of the 



E/CC~~ . 8/C . I/SR.l3/Rev .l 
Pae;e 5 

In view of t he l:kelihood t ha t severa l of t he annexes would be 

obl~8atory, t~e procedur e f or deali06 with pr oposed amenc~ents t o t he 

obHgator~· annexes s:r.ould re t he same as tha t for dealina with 

pr oposet'. amencJnents t o the main body of the convention; oft en i t 

would not be possible to make an amendment to a n annex unle~s a s~ll 

e menciment was D"a c~e t c t he part of tl:e main boey of t he convention to 

wh~ ~h it r el nt ed. The procedur e which he and t he Fr ench, Uni t ed 

Ki ngclo!'l and ti'rlit ed St a tes r epre :Jentative'3 advocated. for emendmants to 

t :r.e malr- bocy of the Convention end the obliga tor y annexes va s mor e 

flex ible then tha t suggested by the ·;ecr eter ia t (Docmaent E/CON1<' .8 /21) 

f or amen dments t c t J:1e main body of t he c onvent i on. They wer e :proposing 

t :r.et the proce~ure for amen dment s t o pe rmisoive ennexee Rtoul 0 he 

differ ent to t hat for ame!l0.ments t o the main bol'iy of t t.e convent ion 

and obl i.:;a t or y annexes . They intended the t the bl arJ< epcce in 

:par agr aph 6( il) s:r.ould be :?illed in l ater wi t t. tl.e ntu:~bers of tt.e 

annexe s which i t wa s agreed ehculd be permis s iY<:! . '£h·~ prcvisionF 

in tha t parasr aph r elating t o permiss: ve aP~exes wer e not so strict 

a s t he corre epon till6 pl'cvisions in the Secretariat draft. 

They conF:idereG. t hat an amendment t o which a t leas t t wo-thir dP 

of the cont racting states agreed should become eff ective on tte 

exJ;i r e tion of ninety dey s after the da t e of not i fica t i on of such 

agr eement i n r egar c:. to all contracting s t a te s except those wh i ch 

noti f ied the Secr e t ar y -Gener al during the ninet y Q8y s tha t t hey 

objec t e d t o t he amendment . No contracting st ate should be declareQ 

to be no longer a par t y to the convent ion because i t objec t ed t o an 

amendment t o t he convention, unle~s its obj ec tion was discus sed at a 

confer ence . In t he f i r st eentence of paraGr aph 2, wh i clJ r ead : 11 I f 

at l east (one - thi rd) o? t he Contrac t ing Sta t es or t he Fconomic and 

Social Council r equest a Confer ence t o consider t Le propose~ emendment 

t he Secr etary-Genera l sl.a ll convene such a Confer ence of t t.e Contr actiiB 

States'', the wor e:.. "one-t l: i r d" hac been pl Hced in br ackf> t e beceuse no 

agree::lei'It had been reP-chad on that point by t he Cot:l!ll1ttee . lie 

(Mr . Baner ji) consider ed t hat the wor e':. "a..'1e- quarter'' shoulc bb ':!U9sti tute d 

f or tne word. 11 one -tl:ird" . et::crw~c;c , i t would l>~:~ very awkwar0 if 

exactly t wo-thirds of the contracting s t a tes agreed t o an amendment 

wi t hout a confer ence and exactly one-thi r d, or even sli5ht ly l ess , 

were oppose Q t o the amendment and desir ed a confer ence t o c onsider i t. 

/In all other 



F./CO~lF .8/C .I/SR .13/Bev .1 
Page 6 

In all ~tcer r e spects the provisions i n Document E/C0~7 .8/4l were 

aj.mi:'.ar t o corresponding :provisions in the draft submitted by the 

Secret.:lr i3t (Do~ument E/COKF .8/21). 

t-'lr . SCHJl.E:fMAN (Netherlands) , thanking the representative 

o:.~ .Inc' · Ct for his work on the draf t, eaid that in general he could 

acce~>t ~.t . 

l'1r . MORG.IIJI~TI (Italy) said thJ t he had doubts about the 

r Alation of t he proposed draft to the fact that t he provisions in the 

main bot~ of the conventidn wer e intended to be almost fixed provisions 

wi.~.erMs those l n both the obligatory and tte permiss ive annexes would 

r equire amendment whenever technica l den l opment e ma de t ha t necessar;r. 

Mr. GCTTPS'I' (Switzerland.) said thE. t he hoped par o3r a ph 5 
of the t ext in Document E/CONF . 8/41 woull:. be emel,ded. in such a way 

ae to avoid. a situation J wbe~ 1 as regards important parts of the 

<;on·:on·!;ion, some ccn·cn L ti% states would e.ppl.J' the origjna1 

provi s~ans 1 wher eas other contracting state ::> would be bound by amended 

provis ion f' . 

Mr . BLCNDEEL (Belgium) l'll'lid that he shared the doubts 

expreseed by t l: e r apr eeenta t ive of Italy . He would deprecate eny 

CeciE>ion tha t t he :Pr ocedure f or amendments to the main bocly of the 

cor1'-~entior. ohvul U. ·be tLo ::~:we c ~ th~t fer amenr1Tllent.8 to the annexes . 

su~b - ~e cision might ~i ssua ce certa in states from becamin~ parties 

to the convention and voul& probably stultify the pr eparatory vork 

done f or the present ConCerence . Those who had partic ipated i n that 

vcrk had from the outset been of the opinion that the procedure f or 

amencilnents to the main body o:f the convention should be different to 

t hat for amendments to t he annexes , because the provi ~ions in ~;e main 

body of the convention should be considered as almcst f ixe d, wher ea s 

t eclmical developments would make necessary amendments to the annexes 

f r om time to time . The Committee was · ignoring the fa ct the t parts 

of t te so-calleC:. " cbli :sa t ory" annexes would be wcrdeo. in the form of 

a reque~t . There was no need to follow different proce~ure for 

amendment s t o the so- called. " optionel annexes" and for amendments to 

t be so-called " obl i ge·tory annexes" . One form of pr ocedure should be 

l a id down for dealing with proposed amendments to the main body of the 

/convention, and 



E/CONF .8 /C .I/fSR .13/Rev .1 
Pa3e 7 

convf'nt j.on , and anctber i or pr oposed amendl!lents t o a ll the cnnexes . 

At lee s~ i t shc-ul(' be laid. down eitt.er t ha t act :i on shou ld be t aken 

on :propo!"-ed ·a1'l.en ~1.ments to the annexes if t hey wer 13 supported by on e 

qHa r ter or more c"l the ~ontraoting statesj or t hat an amen ement to 

t he me.in 1:-·oc!.y cf t he convention could not be made unle s s a c onference 

we F.t c c.nvenec. t o crnsider it en d that en amenfuaent coulc'. oe made to 

an anneJ~· 'Without f'\U0h e conference . 

The CRAJJUWT sugge sted that Document E/cci:F .8/41 might be 

ref erred t o t he ,. ur king Gr oup a f t er t he Commit tee tJaG. dec:it .. e G. wnet her 

the procedure f or dealing •rith propose d amendments t o t he main boC.y 

of the convencion shoul d be the i'la.me as tha t f or e.mendment.s t o ennexes . 

Mr. DVORAK (Czechoslovakia) said. t hat he coul<l a; r ae to 

t he adoption of t he pr inc i pl es in I)ocument E/CGKF .8/41.. Ther e was 

no r eason why tbe procedure f or dealing wi tb pr opcse(. amendments to 

the mein boey of t he convent:i.on should. be differ ent .:.' r om t t at f er 

G.ee iing wi th · pr oposed amen&len ts · to obligatory annexes . N0 

con:i:'erence s boul'Cl. be convened to c onsider 11roposed. amendments to t he 

convention unless one-thi r d of tl1e contracti ng s t a t e2 r eques t ed it. 

N.r. AZKOUL (Lebanon) said tt:at befor e t he Com.mittee t ook 

e decisi~n on the text propo~ed in Document E/CON.F .8/41, it shoult 

:!S ive proper ~onsi. d<')ration t o the ques tion of the dif:.~erence::- betvreen 

t he mein body of the convention and the ennexes . lie consi~ered t he t 

one t ype of procedtu·e should be la id down :for dea ling wi th proposed. 

amendments t o · the main body of the ~onvention, another f or proposed 

a menc1.ments to oblige.tory annexes, and e thi rd.. type for amen(iments to 

permis s i ve annexe e . 

The text of proposed. amen dments to any part of t h e Convention 

should be tranemitted.. by the Secretary-Gener a l, not mer e l y t o each 

c ontra c t ing s tate but to a ll stat es of which repr esenta t i ves ha d. 

a t t ende d. the :present Conferen ce , even i :' t hey had n ot become parties 

to tl:e convent i on . T:1ose s tates would be particu l a r l:J•iinterested i n 

t he amendments , t he adopti on of wl:ich mi0l:t do awey w1 th one of the 

r eason s why they had not become parties t o the c onvent ion . He therefore 

suggest ed t hat the Wo~king Gr oup should consi der t he a dvisab~lity of 

aO.ding a t t he en d. of para8X'aph 1 ·some s uch words a s : "The t ext of 

/ tte emendment 



E/CO~W.8/C.I/SR.l3/Rev.l 
Page 8 

t:r.e amendment shall alflo be submitted to s tates of which a repr eseD.ta tive 

att endeci. the Uni-c,ed Nations Con:ferenC;e on Road and Motor Transport f or 

t lleir ir.J'crma t ion. " It might a l so consider the advisability of 

add.in-e t o paragr c. ph 2 some such word.E't as : "The Secr etary-General 

shoul d invi te to the conference the r epresentatives of states which 

vere representeo. e t the United Nations Conference en Road and Motor 

Traneport, which ha<~ e::;.-preesed a desire to participate in furt her 

discussions on tr•e convention alt~ough they had not bec ome parties t o 

it, aDd whoee attitude to the conveu·(.ion might change if the amendment 

were e.dcpted ." 

t-i.r . GOITRET (S-i·litzerland) , Mr. PANTEUC (Yugoslavia) and 

Mr. MORGAI\1TI (Italy) se.ic'. that t hey agreed with the r epresentative of 

Belgium th9t the provedure f or dealir..g with proposed amendments t o 

the lDEiin body of the convention should be dHfereD.t from that for 

dealing with proposed amendments to t he annexes . 

Replyii1f.S to t he CBAJRMAN, tv'.r. BLONDEEL (Belgium) sa id tha t 

he coul d agr ee to instructions being given t he Working Group to consider 

the ao.visab:i lity of l aying down three different types of procedure, . 

one for amendment e t o t he main body of the convention, anot her for 

amendm.ents to the s o-called "obligatory annexes" and t he third for 

amendment s to the so-called " optional annexes". 

'l'he_sorarni ttee agreec. by 7 votes t o 6 -wi t.t 1 ntstcnti~;:l thet t he 

procedur e for dealing wi t h proposed amenement s to the main bOdy of 

tr~~~~tiEn shoul~ be differ ent to t ha t for dealing with propose~ 

amendments to the annexes . 

On the proposal of t he CHAIRMAN, who pointed out that the 

subjects of dra.:;:"'t Articles D and F submitted by the Secretaria t 

(tocument E/CON£ .8/21) were closely connected with thet of Document 

E/cmri-' .8/41 , 

the Committ ee agreed to instruct the Working Group to eubmit _a 

rev iseC: version of t he draf t Article B pr oposed by the delegations of 

In.iia -L franc~e Unite~- Kingc'tom and the United States of Amer ica 

(Document E/CONF . 8/~l.L~~Eng into account t he contents of draft 

Artic l es D and F s~bmitted by t he Secr etaria t (Document E /CONF . 8/21) and 

t he discussion ther eon a t its t ent h and t hirteenth meetings . 

The meeti?a rose a t 1 .05 E·m. 




